
Standards Committee 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Standards Committee to be held as 
follows for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Thursday, 27 June 2019

TIME: 2.30 pm

VENUE: Committee Room 2, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for Absence 

2  Declarations of Interest 

3  Minutes of the Meeting Held on 19 March 2019 (Pages 1 - 4)

4  Update on the Recruitment and Selection of Additional 
Independent Persons 

(Pages 5 - 8)

5  Review of the Constitution 

As reported at the last meeting the Standards Committee will be given 
an opportunity to comment on the draft revised Constitution when it is 
available. This is anticipated to be in September so, as the committee 
is not next due to meet until November, the intention is for it to be 
circulated electronically.

The City Mayor has recently made some changes to the executive 
functions that he delegates to Lead Members and the updated 
register is attached for the committee’s information. 

(Pages 9 - 26)

6  Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Review (Pages 27 - 30)

7  Verbal Update on the Member Development Framework 

8  Verbal Update on GM-Wide Approach to the Response to the 
Best Practice Recommendations from the Committee on 
Standards in Public Life (including the Review of LGA Model 
Code of Conduct) 

Public Document Pack



9  Work Programme (Pages 31 - 34)

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3316
Carol Eddleston, Senior Democratic Services 
Advisor

E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk



Page | 1

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

19 March 2019

Meeting commenced: 2:35 p.m.
Meeting ended: 3:45 p.m.

PRESENT: Nicolé Jackson (in the chair) and Councillors K Garrido, Hinds, Lewis 
and John Walsh

IN ATTENDANCE: Karen Berry (Principal Democratic Services Advisor), Miranda 
Carruthers-Watt (City Solicitor (and Monitoring Officer)) and Carol 
Eddleston (Senior Democratic Services Advisor)

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Ferguson, Mullen, Turner 
and Warmisham.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

3. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING

The minutes of the meeting held on 8 November 2018 were approved as a correct 
record.

4. ANNUAL REPORT OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE

The Monitoring Officer presented the annual report which summarised the work carried 
out by the Monitoring Officer and her staff to support the committee throughout the year, 
and the ways in which the authority had fulfilled its statutory duty to promote and 
maintain high standards of conduct. 

She referred to the member training information requested at the last meeting and said 
she was encouraged by the take-up of the training opportunities offered over the last 12 
months. The offer of daytime and twilight sessions had been particularly welcomed by 
members.

Detailed consideration was currently being given to the member training and 
development that would be required following the all-out elections in 2020, including ‘soft 
skills’ such as chairing meetings and dealing with difficult situations. There was an 
acknowledgement across the committee that no single learning style suited everybody 
and whilst some topics were perhaps better delivered face-to-face, and attendees could 
often benefit from shared insight and perspective, e-learning was becoming more 
popular in a number of authorities, and might be particularly useful for refresher training. 
Officers agreed to explore with the Local Government Association and North West 
Employers what online provision was available.

Members were aware that LA Governor training was not particularly well attended by 
members who were appointed to Governing Bodies. Invitations were sent out directly by 
Governor Services but it was suggested that it might be useful for Members’ Services to 
issue reminders and maintain attendance records. Additionally, a pre-Council briefing on 
the relevance of the training might encourage more members to attend the sessions 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Page | 2

offered. Corporate Parenting Panel training was well attended but Councillor John 
Walsh, chair of the panel, recommended that the training should be made mandatory for 
newly elected members.

The committee suggested that members might welcome more guidance to assist them in 
completing their Register of Interest forms, especially when first elected. It was 
confirmed that this was being built in to the induction process.

It was confirmed that the Member Development Framework would be presented to the 
committee following sign-off by the Member Development Group.

The Monitoring Officer confirmed that she informed the (relevant) party whip(s) whenever 
she received a complaint about an elected member but did not routinely bring details of 
specific complaints to the Standards Committee. On occasion though, she might 
consider it appropriate to report on a particular decision she had taken, as had been the 
case at the November meeting. 

It was acknowledged that the complaints process from start to finish could inevitably be 
very lengthy, not least sometimes because of difficulties in getting the complainant to 
engage in a timely manner. However, officers were conscious of the need to complete 
the process as soon reasonably practicable, including notification to the complainant of 
the outcome of any hearing.

It was confirmed that complaints about officers were dealt with by the Chief Executive as 
the Head of Paid Service.

Complaints to the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGO) were now 
being consolidated within Legal and Governance rather than the different service areas, 
which allowed the Monitoring Officer to have a more corporate overview.

Councillor Hinds observed that clause 2.29 referred to 14 LGO complaints relating to 
Benefits and Council Tax and said he would expect to be briefed on these as Lead 
Member for Finance and Support Services. It was agreed that this would be followed up 
outside the meeting.

Members said that they would welcome more detail on the relative position of Salford 
City Council as compared to the national picture of complaints. The chair suggested that 
it would be helpful to have a report at a future meeting which outlined the council’s 
process for dealing with LGO complaints, including the implementation of lessons 
learned and communication to members. This might form part of the Annual Report of 
the Standards Committee or be a standalone report.

The committee agreed that the Annual Report should be presented to full Council to 
provide assurance as to how the authority’s duty to promote and maintain high standards 
of conduct by elected and co-opted member was being discharged.

The chair pointed out that much of the content of the Annual Report provided useful 
evidence that the council ‘behaved with integrity, demonstrated a strong commitment to 
ethical values and respected the rule of law’, as was required to be demonstrated in the 
Annual Governance Statement (AGS). She acknowledged that the AGS fell within the 
remit of the Audit & Accounts Committee rather than the Standards Committee, but 
suggested that it might be useful for the relevant extracts of the draft AGS to come to the 
Standards Committee prior to Audit & Accounts.

Page 2



Page | 3

RESOLVED, THAT:

1) The Annual Report be noted and presented to full Council for assurance as to how 
the authority was fulfilling its statutory duty to promote and maintain high standards of 
conduct, and

2) Officers explore what online training may be available for members;
3) Consideration be given to holding a pre-Council briefing session to highlight the 

relevance of training for elected members appointed as LA Governors to Governing 
Bodies;

4) More detailed information be brought to the Standards Committee about complaints 
to the LGO, including the process for responding to them, implementation of the 
lessons learned, and communications with (relevant) members. 

5. COUNCIL’S DRAFT RESPONSE TO THE BEST PRACTICE RECOMMENTATIONS 
FROM A REVIEW BY THE COMMITTEE ON STANDARDS IN PUBLIC LIFE

The Monitoring Officer presented the council’s current position in relation to a number of 
best practice recommendations made by the Committee on Standards in Public Life 
following its review of ethical standards in local government.

Chief Legal Officers across Greater Manchester were looking collectively at each 
authority’s position with a view to establishing co-ordinated a response and further 
developments would be reported to future meetings.

The committee said it would welcome a review of the £100 threshold for declaring gifts & 
hospitality and would also like to have a clearer understanding of the offer and take up of 
seats/tickets for local cultural and sporting events.

It was confirmed that the council maintained a register of Significant Partnerships.

RESOLVED: THAT,

1) The council’s current position in relation to the best practice recommendations of the 
Committee on Standards in Public Life be noted,

2) The committee look forward to receiving updates from the work of the Chief Legal 
Officer’s Group in response to the best practice recommendations, and

3) Information be brought back on the cultural and sporting events for which the council 
received invitations and on how such invitations were dealt with.

6. VERBAL UPDATE ON THE CURRENT REVIEW OF THE CONSTITUTION

The Monitoring Officer explained that it had been hoped to have all the updates complete 
in time for presentation to full Council in March, ahead of implementation from the start of 
the new municipal year, but the updates were taking rather longer than anticipated. 

If a final draft was not ready ahead of the next scheduled meeting of the Standards 
Committee, an electronic version showing the proposed changes, together with an 
explanatory covering report, would be circulated to the committee for comment.

RESOLVED: THAT, the Standards Committee be given an opportunity to comment on 
the draft revised Constitution either at its next scheduled meeting or electronically.

Page 3



Page | 4

7. COMMITTEE MEMBERS’ VIEWS ON THE ARRANGEMENTS FOR DEALING WITH 
ALLEGATIONS OF BREACHES OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT

The Monitoring Officer said that it was now almost 12 months since the committee had 
approved the council’s arrangements for dealing with allegations of breaches of the code 
of conduct and, with the first Hearings Panel having been held on 28 February, the 
arrangements had now been fully tested in practice and officers would welcome 
members’ feedback. 

Members debated the following questions:

- Should Standards Committee members be informed of the name of the subject 
member at the outset?

Members considered that it was preferable not to know the name of the subject 
member when the initial call for panel members was issued. Should a Hearings 
Panel member believe it not appropriate to participate once more details were 
known, s/he could withdraw and ask officers to identify an alternative member.

- Should the complainant be invited to attend the hearing?

Both the investigating officer and the subject member were entitled to call witnesses 
to attend a Hearings Panel. The complainant would tend to be called only when there 
was any dispute about the facts. In the case that the complainant was called, it would 
have to be made clear that s/he was being called as a witness and not to cross 
examine the subject member.

- Was it feasible for a hearing to be dealt with other than by elected members of this 
authority?

There was no mechanism in place for this.

RESOLVED: THAT, the arrangements for dealing with allegations of breaches of the 
code of conduct for members be kept under review in the light of ongoing experience.

8. VERBAL UPDATE ON THE RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION OF (AN) ADDITIONAL 
INDEPENDENT PERSON(S)

The Monitoring Officer provided an update on progress to date. It was acknowledged 
that elected members were now heavily engaged in campaigning and it was agreed that 
interviews should be held after the elections.

RESOLVED: THAT, three members of the committee be identified to participate in an 
interview panel to be held after 2 May in order to recruit one or more additional 
Independent Persons.

9. WORK PROGRAMME

Members noted that the committee’s draft work programme would be updated to include 
the likely output from the Chief Legal Officers’ Group’s work in response to CSPL review 
of ethical standards in local government. 

RESOLVED: THAT, the draft work programme be updated to reflect the likely output 
from the Chief Legal Officers’ Group’s work on the best practice recommendations of the 
Committee on Standards in Public Life.

Page 4



1

Part 1 - Open to the Public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF

THE MONITORING OFFICER

TO 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

ON 

27 JUNE 2019

TITLE: Recruitment and Selection of Independent Persons

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Standards Committee note the proposed appointment of Independent 
Persons for subsequent approval by a majority of the Council. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

At its meeting on 8 November 2018 the Standards Committee authorised the 
Monitoring Officer to make arrangements for the recruitment and selection of one or 
more Independent Persons whose appointment must then be approved by a majority 
of the Council.

This report serves as a reminder of the requirement for, and the role of, Independent 
Persons and presents the details and outcome of the recruitment and selection 
process that has been carried out.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

Report to Standards Committee on 8 November – Recruitment and Selection of One 
or More Independent Persons Following the Resignation of Mr Robert Cowan.

Independent Person – Job Advertisement.
Independent Person – Role Specification.

Sections 28(7) to (10) of the Localism Act 2011.

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



2

The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2015.

KEY DECISION: NO

DETAILS:

Standards Committee is aware that Sections 28(7) to (10) of the Localism Act 2011 
require the Council to appoint at least one “Independent Person” – essentially not a 
current Officer, Member or Co-opted Member of the Council, or a person who has 
been an Officer, Member or Co-opted Member of the Council within the past 5 years, 
or a relative or close friend of either of the aforementioned categories.  

The Localism Act provides that the views of an Independent Person must “be 
sought, and taken into account” by the Council “before it makes a decision on an 
allegation that it has decided to investigate”.  

In addition the Localism Act provides that the views of an Independent Person may 
be sought by the Council when deciding how to deal with a new allegation.

More recently the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2015 introduced an additional formal statutory role for Independent 
Persons, requiring them to work together as a Panel in advising the Council prior to 
any vote on whether to dismiss the Council’s Head of Paid Service, Monitoring 
Officer and Chief Finance Officer, (‘Protected Officers’). Under these regulations, the 
advisory Panel must contain at least two Independent Persons.

Since 2013 the current and former Monitoring Officers have worked effectively and 
efficiently with two Independent Persons appointed by Council in accordance with the 
requirements of the Localism Act. To date there has been no requirement for them to 
advise Council in relation to the dismissal of Protected Officers.

Following the resignation of one of the Independent Persons in late 2018 the 
Standards Committee authorised the Monitoring Officer to make the appropriate 
arrangements for the recruitment and selection of two additional Independent 
Persons.

An advertisement and role specification placed on Greater Jobs generated six 
applications. Following a shortlisting exercise conducted by the Monitoring Officer 
and the Head of Democratic Services it was proposed that four candidates should be 
invited for interview. The four shortlisted candidates currently held or had held senior 
positions in the education, legal and local government sectors.

Interviews were held on 10 June with an interview panel of Councillors Karen 
Garrido, Kate Lewis and John Mullen, together with the Head of Democratic 
Services. The interview panel was pleased to be able to propose that two of the 
interviewed candidates should be appointed. Further detail will be provided verbally 

Page 6



3

at the meeting and the panel’s proposals will be presented to Council in July for 
approval. 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Salford City Council Constitution, Code of Conduct for 
Members.

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: None arising from this 
report or its recommendations.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Should the Council fail to appoint at least one additional 
Independent Person the authority could be considered to be in breach of the Local 
Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2015.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:

Under the provisions of the Localism Act 2011, the Council is responsible for 
deciding how to deal with standards issues at a local level, including adopting its own 
local code and determining what arrangements it will adopt to deal with complaints, 
and is required to appoint at least one Independent Person to assist it in promoting 
and maintaining high standards of conduct amongst all its members. The 
Independent Person will be consulted on the decision to investigate complaints and 
before it makes a decision on an investigated complaint. 

The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2015 
localise the disciplinary process for senior officers with statutory responsibility by 
providing that any such decision will be taken transparently by full council who must 
consider any advice, views or recommendations from an independent panel, the 
conclusions of any investigation into the proposed dismissal, and any representations 
from the officer concerned.

The Council is required to invite independent persons who have been appointed for 
the purposes of the members’ conduct regime under section 28(7) of the Localism 
Act 2011 to form the independent panel.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Minimal

There is provision in the budget for the basic allowance plus estimated attendance 
costs of two Independent Persons. If Council subsequently approves the 
appointment of the two successful candidates this will take the total number of 
Independent Persons to three, which will therefore result in a small increase in 
financial pressure on the Democratic Services budget. 

Page 7



4

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: None arising from this report or its 
recommendation.

HR IMPLICATIONS: None arising from this report or its recommendation.
 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A

CONTACT OFFICER: MIRANDA CARRUTHERS-WATT      TEL NO: 0161 793 3620

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: ALL

Page 8



Executive scheme of delegation June 2019

City Mayors Scheme of Executive Delegation June 2019 Page 1

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL

THE ELECTED CITY MAYOR’S REGISTER OF EXECUTIVE 
FUNCTIONS DELEGATED TO LEAD MEMBERS.

Pursuant to my power under section 9E of the Local Government Act 2000 (as 
amended) the attached sets out the executive functions I have delegated to 
Lead Members.

Such delegations are without prejudice to my right to exercise these functions 
personally. 

Signed:      Paul Dennett                                            Dated: 13 June 2019

City Mayor, Salford City Council.

June 2019.

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



Executive scheme of delegation June 2019

City Mayors Scheme of Executive Delegation June 2019 Page 2

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL

Executive Members Portfolios
The City Mayor’s Scheme of 
Delegation

Page 10



Executive scheme of delegation June 2019

City Mayors Scheme of Executive Delegation June 2019 Page 3

Contents
Introduction ...........................................................................................................................................4

Novel or contentious proposals .....................................................................................................5

Advice from Statutory Officers ...........................................................................................................5

Good Decision Making ........................................................................................................................5

Table of Decisions. ..........................................................................................................................6

Decisions reserved to the City Mayor ...............................................................................................8

Strategic services and financial planning .....................................................................................8

Contracts ...........................................................................................................................................9

Grant aid, Loans and Guarantees .................................................................................................9

Charities ............................................................................................................................................9

Community Right to Challenge:- Localism Act 2011 ..................................................................9

Joint Committees ...........................................................................................................................10

Areas of Responsibility......................................................................................................................10

Cabinet ............................................................................................................................................11

Deputy City Mayors .......................................................................................................................11

Statutory Deputy City Mayor - Areas of Responsibility.............................................................11

Deputy City Mayor – Areas of responsibility ..............................................................................11

Regeneration and Property Panel ...............................................................................................12

Procurement Board........................................................................................................................12

Lead Member for Housing & Neighbourhoods ..........................................................................13

Lead Member for Environment and Community Safety – Areas of Responsibility ..............13

Lead Member for Strategic Planning and Sustainable Development – Areas of 
Responsibility .................................................................................................................................14

Lead Member for Finance and Support Services – Areas of Responsibility .........................14

Lead Member for Children’s and Young Peoples Services - Areas of Responsibility .........15

Lead Member for Adult services, Health and Wellbeing – Areas of Responsibility .............16

Lead Member for Workforce and Industrial Relations - Areas of Responsibility ..................17

Area Committees ...........................................................................................................................17

Page 11



Executive scheme of delegation June 2019

City Mayors Scheme of Executive Delegation June 2019 Page 4

Introduction

Salford has an elected City Mayor. The City Mayor leads the Council and has overall 
responsibility for the delivery of council services. The City Mayor is directly accountable to 
local people. The Mayor leads and chairs the Cabinet; provides political and community 
leadership and has responsibility for proposing the general budget and policy to Council

To help him oversee the delivery of council services and plans for change, he has appointed 
two Deputy City Mayors, one of whom is his statutory Deputy as required by legislation. The 
Deputy Mayors have different portfolios but are both given delegated authority to act in the 
place of the City Mayor where he is unable to act for any reason, including being out of the 
City.

The City Mayor has appointed a number of Lead Members to act as his Cabinet. He intends 
to take the majority of decisions in consultation with his Cabinet Members at Cabinet 
Meetings. These meetings are held in public and are open to Members of the Public to 
attend. Agendas and minutes are published on the Council’s website. 

The Mayor and Cabinet are responsible for delivering the majority of the functions of the 
Council including, Housing, Transport Regeneration, Education, Equalities and Adult 
Services 

The City Mayor has given the Lead Members areas of responsibility. These are referred to 
as portfolios and are set out in this document. Lead Members may have support Members 
where they have large or complex portfolios and they work closely with directors of the 
relevant services to oversee the Council’s operations in their portfolio and support the 
delivery of the City Mayor’s objectives.

The City Mayor wants to make sure that departments work together and services are 
integrated. In some instances a Lead Member may take the lead on one area but the 
responsibility is shared across the Cabinet. The City Mayor and Lead Members work 
collaboratively to ensure council departments and initiatives are joined up and make 
effective use of the Council’s budget and other resources.

Cabinet have regular briefings and meetings to identify related issues and the overall 
direction for the council.

‘Key Decision’ means an executive decision, which is likely –
(a) to result in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of
savings which are, significant having regard to the Council’s budget for the
service or function to which the decision relates; or
(b) to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working
in an area comprising two or more wards in the area of the Council.

Salford City Council has agreed that for the purposes of (a) above that “significant” 
expenditure or savings are expenditure or savings (including the receipt of loss of income or 
capital receipts) in excess of £350,000

Key decisions will be taken by the City Mayor in consultation with the Cabinet except in 
cases of urgency when the City Mayor or one of his Deputies may take them in accordance 

Page 12



Executive scheme of delegation June 2019

City Mayors Scheme of Executive Delegation June 2019 Page 5

with the Constitution. Areas where a key decision is likely to be taken are highlighted on the 
council’s forward plan. 

Decisions taken by the City Mayor, Deputy City Mayor and Lead Members are recorded on a 
Record of Decision form, referred to as an ROD and are published on the Council’s website.

The City Mayor is committed to engage with citizens and partners and to ensure that the 
decision making process is transparent. This document supports this commitment by setting 
out who leads on what function.

The City Mayor is responsible for the allocation and discharge of all Executive functions and 
may decide how Executive functions are to be exercised.

Where a decision falls across more than two portfolios Lead Members are expected to 
consult each other before referring the matter to the City Mayor who will make the final 
decision.

As part of the preparation for decision making, relevant officers identify issues which need 
the City Mayor or, Lead Member involvement or decision. These are logged and considered 
via regular briefings with the City Mayor and Cabinet. 
This document will be subject to ongoing review by the City Mayor and an up to date version 
maintained on the Council’s website.

Novel or contentious proposals 
Whilst the City Mayor will be responsible for key decisions, if any other proposed action or 
decision to be taken in reliance of the General Delegation can objectively be considered to 
be novel, contentious or repercussive must be referred to the City Mayor to approve (i.e. by 
an ROD in the normal way) unless “Permission to Proceed” has been given by the City 
Mayor or a Deputy City Mayor acting on his authority. 

The City Director and Monitoring Officer may issue guidance as to what may or may not be 
considered novel or contentious, staff are encouraged to seek advice from their line 
manager or Democratic Services team if they are at all unsure as to what sort of proposal 
might reasonably fall into this category. Decisions may fall into this category if, for example 
they are likely to result in service changes, budget cuts or attract significant public or media 
interest that the City Mayor should be aware of.

Advice from Statutory Officers 
It is essential that decision makers seek appropriate advice from statutory officers about the 
organisational, legal and financial implications of decisions. Reports without the relevant 
statutory information are likely to be referred back to the officer for additional information. In 
addition Equality Impact Assessments should be routinely obtained and considered. This 
may delay the decision making process.

Good Decision Making 
The general principle underlying the City Mayor’s delegations of matters for decision by 
individual Lead Members is that they must fall exclusively within the scope of their individual 
Portfolios. 

Page 13



Executive scheme of delegation June 2019

City Mayors Scheme of Executive Delegation June 2019 Page 6

Where a matter affects more than one Executive Portfolio the matter must be referred to the 
City Mayor for decision UNLESS all the Executive Members whose Portfolios are affected 
agree with the decision in writing and the City Mayor has first been notified. 
Where the relevant Portfolio is unclear or disputed, the advice of the Monitoring Officer 
should be sought, and the matter should be referred to the City Mayor for decision.

If a decision relates to expenditure on works, services or supplies being purchased or hired 
on a Council wide basis it shall be taken by the Lead Member for Finance and Support 
Services, in consultation with the relevant Lead Member.
If funding for the proposal is already identified and available for this purpose within the 
relevant services or Portfolio’s budget, the decision may be made by the relevant Lead 
Member alone.

Lead Members may only exercise the executive functions delegated to them by the City 
Mayor in the City Mayor’s Register of Delegations in accordance with: -
(a) statute or other legal requirements, including the principles of public law, the Human 
Rights Act 1998, statutory guidance and statutory codes of practice;
(b) the Council’s Constitution, Standing Orders and Financial Regulations of the Council;
(c) the revenue and capital budgets of the Council, subject to any variation thereof which is 
permitted by the Council’s Financial Regulations.

Lead Members may not exercise delegated executive functions in a way contrary to the 
policies and plans approved by or on behalf of Salford City Council. Before exercising 
delegated executive functions, particularly on matters involving the reputation of Salford City 
Council, Lead Members must consider the advice concerning novel, contentious and 
repercussive decisions. 

Before exercising delegated executive functions, on matters of significance to a particular 
Ward or Wards, Lead Members should consult, the relevant Ward Councillors, where 
practicable.

Unless expressly delegated to do so by the City Mayor, a Lead Member may not discharge 
an executive function delegated to a Committee of the Executive or to an Area Committee.

A Lead Member may not discharge an executive function:-
 where the function has been reserved to the City Mayor or where the City Mayor’s Register of 
Delegations requires that the function must be discharged by an Officer, unless expressly 
delegated to do so by the City Mayor; or  where the Constitution or the law requires that the 
function must be discharged by an Officer.
A Lead Member cannot make a decision which conflicts with a decision previously taken by 
the City Mayor without the prior written permission of the City Mayor.
The City Mayor will notify the Monitoring Officer of any express delegations that he makes 
and the Monitoring Officer will make the necessary amendments to the City Mayor’s Register 
of Delegations.

Table of Decisions. 
In the following scheme of delegation, the City Mayor will retain all executive decision taking 
responsibilities in respect of key decisions. 

Decisions are taken as set out below.  The conferring of any delegated power does not 
prevent the Mayor from personally exercising the functions himself. The City Mayor may 

Page 14



Executive scheme of delegation June 2019

City Mayors Scheme of Executive Delegation June 2019 Page 7

exercise any Mayoral power in place of or concurrently with any specified Lead Member or 
Senior Members of Staff. 

Lead Members have delegated power to take all decisions within their area of responsibility 
subject to not having a conflict of interest, and the action being within the approved policy 
and budgetary framework. 

Lead Members are also responsible for the development of policy and strategy in their area 
of activity. They have delegated power to approve and implement changes to policy and 
strategy provided that it does not incur expenditure for which there is no approved budget.

Decision Maker Circumstances Consultation 
needed 

Decision reported

City Mayor All Key decisions.
Decisions reserved 
to the City Mayor 

Cabinet Via Website and 
circulated to all 
members.

City Mayor Urgent decisions – 
novel contentious or 
repercussive 
decisions from 
Cabinet Members 

Deputy City Mayor 
(s) Urgency 
procedures to be 
followed as set out in 
the constitution

To Cabinet for noting 
and via Website and 
circulated to all 
members 

City Mayor
(Except where 
decisions are being 
made by officers up 
to £150k)

Decisions to dispose 
of any interest in 
Land

Property and 
Regeneration Panel

Via Website and 
circulated to all 
members

Statutory Deputy City 
Mayor/Deputy City 
Mayor – Acting on 
behalf of the City 
Mayor

Both deputies have 
all the powers of the 
Mayor in respect of 
key decisions or as 
delegated by the 
Mayor from time to 
time, to be exercised 
as agreed by the 
Mayor or in his 
absence .   

Cabinet To Cabinet for noting 
and via Website and 
circulated to all 
members

Statutory Deputy City 
Mayor

Delegations in the 
Scheme of Executive 
delegation 

As set out in the 
Scheme

via Website and 
circulated to all 
members

Deputy City Mayor Delegations in the 
Scheme of Executive 
delegation 

As set out in the 
Scheme

via Website and 
circulated to all 
members

Executive  Members Delegations in the 
Scheme of Executive 
delegation 

As set out in the 
Scheme

via Website and 
circulated to all 
members

Exec Members 
sitting as Members of 
ICJC

Commissioning 
decisions up to a 
limit of £1m, 
decisions where in 
principle approval 
has been obtained 
from the CM in 
advance. 

Statutory Deputy 
Mayor

via Website and 
circulated to all 
members

Page 15



Executive scheme of delegation June 2019

City Mayors Scheme of Executive Delegation June 2019 Page 8

Any authorised 
Decision Maker

Urgent Decisions Per Constitution via Website and 
circulated to all 
members

Any authorised 
Decision Maker

Decisions defined as 
Novel, contentious or 
repercussive

To be referred to the 
City Mayor 

via Website and 
circulated to all 
members

City Director In line with the 
Scheme of 
Delegation to 
officers. 

As set out in the 
Officer Scheme of 
delegation. 

Officer decisions are 
required to be 
published. 

Designated Senior 
Officer 

In line with the 
Scheme of 
Delegation to 
officers. 

As set out in the 
Officer Scheme of 
delegation. 

Officer decisions are 
required to be 
published

Community 
Committees 

In line with the terms 
of reference in the 
Constitution 

To be determined in 
accordance with the 
Locality Plan.

Procurement Board As set out in the 
terms of reference

via Website and 
circulated to all 
members

Regeneration and 
Property Panel

As set out in the 
terms of reference

via Website and 
circulated to all 
members

Decisions reserved to the City Mayor

There are a number of decisions which the City Mayor will take, within the constraints of the 
Budget and Policy Framework agreed by Council: for ease these are set out below;

Strategic services and financial planning 
 Key Decisions, unless previously delegated to an individual Lead Member, or 

previously agreed to be taken by an Officer. 
 Matters relating to more than two Executive portfolios which have been referred to 

the City Mayor. 
 Agreeing statutory and other strategies 
 Approval of the proposed withdrawal or variation of any service outside the scope of 

an agreed Service Plan where the likely impact on present or future users of the 
service is considered significant by the City Mayor or the relevant Lead Member

 Any alterations to agreed budgets or Council Service Plans which the relevant Chief 
Officer or the Chief Financial Officer considers to be significant.

 Agreement upon the annual budget for Services within Portfolios including the 
application of the overall capital programme (within the Budget and Policy 
Framework). 

 Agreement of significant changes to Council policies in respect of fees and charges, 
 Commitments to funding in future years not covered within the Council’s medium 

term financial plan. 
 Where required by Financial Regulations, agreement upon virements from one 

division of a Service to another or between Services within Portfolios or between 
Portfolios and within the approved budget and constitutional limits.

Page 16



Executive scheme of delegation June 2019

City Mayors Scheme of Executive Delegation June 2019 Page 9

 Decision making in respect of the establishment, alteration or discontinuance of 
schools.

 To the extent that this is an executive function, consideration of reports which an 
Ombudsman requires to be published by Council.

Contracts
Decisions on any contract where the contract value is £1,000,000 (£1 million) or over, which 
have been referred to him by Procurement Board.

Grant aid, Loans and Guarantees

The following matters are reserved for decision by the City Mayor:-
1. Making any decision in relation to grant aid which the City Mayor identifies as being 

of strategic importance. 
2. Agreeing to establish a fund (not being a fund wholly established with external grant 

aid for which the Council is the Accountable Body and which is received for this 
purpose) of £350,000k or over from which individual grants or loans will be paid and 
agreeing the eligibility criteria for these grants or loans.

3. Approving the payment of any grant or loan of £350,000k or over (including a grant or 
loan paid wholly or in part by the Council out of external grant aid).

4. Approving the withdrawal or reclaiming of grant aid which has been awarded to a 
third party where the amount of grant aid to be withdrawn or reclaimed is of  
£350,0000 or over.

5. Agreeing to the Council becoming the Accountable Body for any award of grant aid 
from an external funder to the Council or to a third party where:-

(i) the grant aid to be received by the Council is anticipated to be £350,000k 
or over; or
(ii) the grant aid to be received by the third party is anticipated to
be £350,000k or over.

6.   Agreeing to the Council guaranteeing the liabilities of a third party where the financial   
      exposure of the Council under the guarantee is or may be £350,000k or 
      over.

Charities

The power to appoint or remove a Member of the City Council as Charity Trustee is 
reserved to the City Mayor.

Community Right to Challenge:- Localism Act 2011
This paragraph relates to the “Community Right to Challenge” contained in Part 5 of the 
Localism Act 2011 (“the Act”).
The decision to accept an expression of interest (including a modified expression of interest) 
submitted pursuant to the Community Right to Challenge is reserved to the City Mayor 

Page 17



Executive scheme of delegation June 2019

City Mayors Scheme of Executive Delegation June 2019 Page 10

Joint Committees
1. Making arrangements with one or more local authorities for the discharging of

an executive function by a Joint Committee.
2. Making appointments of Members of the Mayoral Team to Joint Committees as

described in paragraph 7.1 above.
3. Making appointments of other Councillors to Joint Committees where

permitted by law.
4. Agreeing to arrangements being made by Full Council under which a Joint

Committee will discharge both executive and non-executive functions, and to
appointments being made to such a Joint Committee by Full Council.

Arrangements with other Local Authorities

     1. Where joint arrangements are established with one or more local authorities and/ or 
           their executives to exercise functions which are executive functions, any joint    
           committee appointed in accordance with those arrangements may, subject to the 
           terms of those arrangements, discharge those executive functions.
      2.  Where executive functions are delegated by the City Mayor or the Executive to be 
           discharged by another local authority or the executive of another authority, that 
           authority or executive may discharge such functions (subject to the terms of the 
           delegation), but this will not prevent the City Mayor (or the Council's Executive) 
           discharging such functions themselves.
     3.   The City Mayor or the Executive may make arrangements with the Leader/Mayor or 
           Executive of another local authority to discharge the executive functions of that 
           authority and, subject to the terms of such arrangements may further delegate the 
           exercise of such functions to an officer of the Council.

Areas of Responsibility 
City Mayor - 
 
Whilst the City Mayor has overall responsibility for these areas, it is his intention to exercise 
decision making in a democratic way and to consult with Cabinet colleagues.

The City Mayor will take the lead as follows: 

1. To represent and act as an ambassador for the City of Salford and to provide political 
leadership in developing strategic partnerships with agencies, citizens and 
stakeholders in relation to the delivery of strategic objectives and the provision of 
services for the wellbeing of its citizens.

2. To exercise overall responsibility for executive decisions and strategic allocation of 
resources across the Council and the co-ordination of the Council’s policies, 
strategies and service delivery

3. To determine how and by whom the Council’s executive functions are exercised.
4. To make appointments to outside bodies not within the remit of the Council.
5. To be responsible for all executive matters not within the remit of the Portfolio of any 

other Executive Member.
6. To be the specific lead on City Regeneration, and Economic Development.
7. To be the specific lead on Business Engagement and Inward Investment.

Page 18



Executive scheme of delegation June 2019

City Mayors Scheme of Executive Delegation June 2019 Page 11

8. To represent the Council on the Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA), 
the Association of Greater Manchester Authorities (AGMA) and the Greater 
Manchester Police and Crime Panel.

9. To represent and act as an ambassador to promote Salford nationally and 
internationally as a modern global city.

10. To lead on all matters in relation to Council Property and assets, including the 
Council’s estates and facilities management arrangements and community buildings.

11. To exercise overall responsibility to suspend the Chief Executive immediately in an 
emergency; in liaison with the Lead Member for Workforce Reform and Industrial 
Relations.

Cabinet 
The CM has established a Cabinet made up of 2 Deputy Mayors, one of whom is a Statutory 
Deputy Mayor as provided for in the LGA 2000, and 7 Lead Members. 

Deputy City Mayors  
The City Mayor delegates authority within the responsibility areas outlined for expenditure 
decisions up to £1Million. 

If for any reason the City Mayor is unable to act either Deputy City Mayor may act in his 
place; on all areas of policy, responsibilities and all other matters as required. 

Statutory Deputy City Mayor - Areas of Responsibility
1. To advise and assist the City Mayor in the exercise of his functions as he shall from 

time to time determine.
2. To deputise for the City Mayor in the exercise of his functions when he is, for 

whatever reason, unable to act. 
3. To exercise delegated authority for the responsibility areas for the Deputy City Mayor 

as from time to time as required.
4. To take the lead on matters relating to the internal functions of the Council including 

public service reform and transformation. 
5. To lead on Locality planning and Strategic Overview of Integrated Neighbourhoods 
6. To lead on organisational effectiveness and efficiency including in relation to

procurement and collaboration.
7. To lead on the development and delivery of the City Mayor’s anti-poverty strategy, 

including all aspects of financial and social inclusion.

Deputy City Mayor – Areas of responsibility 
1. To advise and assist the City Mayor in the exercise of his functions as he shall from 

time to time determine.
2. To deputise for the Statutory Deputy City Mayor in the exercise of her functions when 

she is, for whatever reason, unable to act. 
3. To work with the City Mayor on all matters concerned with the development and 

delivery of devolution for Greater Manchester. 
4. To work with the City Mayor on Salford’s role within the Northern Powerhouse.
5. To take the lead on matters relating to the external functions of the Council including 

public service reform and transformation.

Page 19



Executive scheme of delegation June 2019

City Mayors Scheme of Executive Delegation June 2019 Page 12

6. To lead on Salford's role in respect of the Local Government Association.
7. All programmes and items of work and services in relation the remedial works 

required to the Pendleton PFI tower blocks in relation to replacement of cladding 
system; fire risk assessments; sprinkler systems and type 4 remedial work.
Any expenditure in relation to such works and services up to the budget limit for such 
work and services included within the 2018/19 capital budget.

      8. Lead Member delegations for Children’s Services as outlined on page 15

Regeneration and Property Panel
The City Mayor has retained executive responsibility for strategic regeneration matters and 
for property matters as outlined below. The City Mayor will take these decisions in 
consultation with Cabinet Members at the Regeneration and Property Panel. 

The City Mayor has delegated other executive responsibilities as set out in this document to 
the Lead Member for Housing and Neighbourhoods and where it does not conflict with his 
role as a Member of the Planning Panel, the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable 
development. 

The following Property matters are reserved to the City Mayor:-
1. Acquisitions of Property where the consideration to be paid by the Council is    

£1,000,000 (£1 million) or over.
2. Disposals where:-

(i)the Council has been required by law to publicly advertise the proposed   
Disposal (e.g. public open space); and (ii) one or more objections to the proposed 
Disposal has been received.

3. Disposals which are not subject to a competitive process where the consideration 
to be received by the Council is £1,000,000 (£1 million) or over.

4. Disposals for less than the best consideration reasonably obtainable where the 
Chief Financial Officer on receipt of a valuation from a qualified valuer estimates 
that the difference between the consideration to be received by the Council and the 
best consideration reasonably obtainable exceeds 10% 

5. Disposals which are fall within the description of novel or contentious;
6. Disposals of charitable land.

Procurement Board 
The City Mayor has delegated executive responsibilities outlined below to the Lead Member 
for Finance and Support Services, in consultation with the Members of the Procurement 
Board for decisions up to £1m. The City Mayor will take decisions in excess of £1m taking 
account of the recommendations of the Procurement Board.

1. The Procurement Board will oversee and approve the Council’s Procurement Policy 
and Strategy. The Procurement Board will ensure that Council objectives are taken 
into account in the Procurement Strategy and Policy. In particular this will include the 
need to reflect the social value agenda (during procurement processes) including 
getting local people back into work, creating training opportunities, and encouraging 
inward investment.

2. To ensure that the process has taken account of the City Mayor’s commissioning 
principles.

Page 20



Executive scheme of delegation June 2019

City Mayors Scheme of Executive Delegation June 2019 Page 13

3. To receive for approval expenditure and award of contracts in excess of £150,000. 
Decisions over £1,000,000 be made at the Procurement Board when the City Mayor 
is present.

4. To consider and approve applications for waivers and exemptions to contract 
standing orders (CSO’s).

5. Receive reports on the rolling annual Procurement Plan on a quarterly basis.

Lead Member for Housing & Neighbourhoods
The City Mayor delegates authority within the responsibility areas outlined for
Expenditure and saving decisions up to £350k.

1. To lead on the Council’s Housing Choice, Quality and Provision Strategies,
2. To lead the delivery of the Council’s Housing Services including all aspects of 

supported housing.
3. To lead on the City Mayor’s priorities for tackling homelessness and providing 

affordable housing.
4. To lead on private sector housing services and regulation.
5. To support the not for profit housing organisations and align with key social/welfare 

programmes
6. To maintain an overview of the inter relationship and connection through housing 

with the health, social care and health agendas
7. To exercise responsibility for Sport & Leisure, Libraries & Information Services, 

Archives, Arts Development, Heritage, Museums & Galleries provision in consultation 
with the Executive Support Member for Culture, Leisure and Sport and the Lead 
Member for Environment and Community Safety.

8. To be responsible for leading on policy formulation and service provision in relation to 
Refugees and Asylum Seekers.

Lead Member for Environment and Community Safety – Areas of 
Responsibility
The City Mayor delegates authority within the responsibility areas outlined for
expenditure and saving decisions up to £350k.

1. To advise and assist the City Mayor in the exercise of his functions.
2. To lead on the operation of the Council’s waste management services, including 

recycling.
3. To lead on the discharge of the Council’s functions in relation to Environmental and 

Regulatory Services..
4. To be responsible for the Council’s Street scene Services.
5. To lead on the development of the green environment (non planning matters) and all 

matters relating to the provision of Salford’s Parks Services. 
6. To lead on the discharge of the Council’s licensing functions.
7. To lead on the discharge of the Council’s functions in relation to allotments.
8. To lead on the discharge of the City Council’s functions in relation to community 

safety and crime and disorder.
9. To lead on the Council’s responsibilities for Citywide Services inc School catering, 

Building Cleaning and Commercial Catering

Page 21



Executive scheme of delegation June 2019

City Mayors Scheme of Executive Delegation June 2019 Page 14

10. To exercise responsibility on for Sport & Leisure, Libraries & Information Services, 
Archives, Arts Development, Heritage, Museums & Galleries provision together with 
the Executive Support Member for Culture, Leisure and Sport by the Lead Member 
for Housing and Neighbourhoods

11. To lead on Emergency Planning.

Lead Member for Strategic Planning and Sustainable Development – 
Areas of Responsibility
The City Mayor delegates authority within the responsibility areas outlined for expenditure 
decisions and saving up to £350k.

1. To advise and assist the City Mayor in the exercise of his functions.
2. To lead on the Council’s Energy Policies.
3. To lead the Council’s Strategy on Environmental Sustainability, including policies in 

relation to climate change, renewable energy, energy efficiency and carbon 
reductions.

4. To lead on the issues of environmental quality, design and management.
5. To lead on the discharge of the Council’s functions in relation to Planning & 

Regulatory Services.
6. To lead on the client function for the Council’s joint venture vehicle with Urban Vision.
7. To lead on the Council’s policies in relation to strategic planning in so far as they are 

an Executive Function.
8. To lead on all matters concerning Town Twinning
9. To lead on matters of Heritage development 
10. To lead on matters of Air and Water quality and all aspects of flood risk management 
11. To lead on the discharge of the Council’s functions in relation to taxi and private hire  

(including provision of adequate ranks, inspections, relationships with operators and 
safeguarding the public). 

Lead Member for Finance and Support Services – Areas of 
Responsibility
The City Mayor delegates authority for matters within the remit of the Procurement Board for 
expenditure decisions up to £1m.

The City Mayor delegates authority for taking decisions on matters within the purview of 
write offs for council tax and business rates in consultation with the Section 151 officer.

The City Mayor delegates authority within the Lead Members other responsibility areas 
outlined for expenditure and saving decisions up to £350k.

1.  To advise and assist the City Mayor in the exercise of his functions.
2.  To lead all the Council’s financial arrangements, and without prejudice to
     the generality of the foregoing, to be responsible in accordance with Rule 8.1
     of Salford City Council’s Contractual Standing Orders for:

2.1Taking the decision to issue an invitations to tender for all
Contracts where the Contract Value is £75,000 and over but less

Page 22



Executive scheme of delegation June 2019

City Mayors Scheme of Executive Delegation June 2019 Page 15

than £100,000; and taking the decision (together with the Executive Lead 
Member for the respective service area) to accept a tender for all Contracts
where the Contract Value is £75,000 and over but less than
£100,000. 

3. To lead in the development of the City Mayor’s proposals for the
    Finance and Budget Strategy and to have regard to the provisions of the City 
    Mayors anti-poverty strategy
4. To be responsible for oversight in regulating and controlling the finances of
    the Council and for overseeing such Financial Regulations as are considered
    necessary for the supervision and control of those functions
5. To lead on decisions relating to Council Tax, which do not statutorily require
    a decision by the full Council.
6. With the S151 Officer to consider and formulate guidelines for the preparation
    of the capital and revenue budgets
7. To consider and to advise upon the order of priorities of schemes involving
    capital expenditure proposed by the various services of the Council.
8. To lead on the administration of Council Tax and National Non Domestic
    Rates.
9. To lead on the Council’s Digital Strategy.
10.To oversee the management of the Council’s Corporate Business Services, 
     including the Council’s Housing Benefit service and Council Tax Support 
     Scheme, the Council’s Marketing and Communications Strategy, the Council’s 
     Human Resources function & the Council’s provision of Legal and Democratic 
     Services
11.To lead on the development of the Council’s Procurement Strategy.
12.To lead on the development and maintenance of the Council’s Procurement and 
     Corporate Risk Management Strategies.

Lead Member for Children’s and Young Peoples Services - Areas of 
Responsibility – delegated to the Deputy City Mayor
The City Mayor delegates authority within the responsibility areas outlined for
expenditure and saving decisions up to £350k.

1. To advise and assist the City Mayor in the exercise of his functions.
2. To ensure that vulnerable children are safeguarded in accordance with
    statutory obligations and national policies. Including the Council’s provisions
    for Early Intervention, Children in Need, Integrated Service for Looked After
    Children and Children’s Safeguarding.
3. To lead on the role of Councillors within the Council’s Corporate Parenting
    responsibilities.
4. To lead on the Council’s functions in its capacity as a Local Education
     Authority (excluding certain LEA functions relating to Adults).
5. To be the Executive Lead Member for Children’s Services pursuant to section 

           19 Children’s Act 2004.
6. To be the Council’s Executive lead Member on the following partnerships:

 Salford Children and Young People’s Trust.
 Salford Safeguarding Children Board

7. To lead on the education and development aspects of the Council’s Starting

Page 23



Executive scheme of delegation June 2019

City Mayors Scheme of Executive Delegation June 2019 Page 16

     Life Well Service and Starting Life Well Quality Improvement Framework,
     including:

 The Early Years Foundation Stage Statutory Framework
 Childcare Sufficiency
 Free entitlement funding for two, three and four year-olds

8. To lead on the Council’s Strategy for Young People (post 16) who are not in
     employment or training.
9. To lead on the Council’s Skills and Employment Policies.

Lead Member for Adult services, Health and Wellbeing – Areas of 
Responsibility 
The City Mayor delegate’s authority within the responsibility areas outlined for
expenditure and saving decisions up to £350k

1. To advise and assist the City Mayor in the exercise of his functions.
2. To lead on the discharge of the Council’s functions in relation to public health and to 

oversee the Council’s joint working on public health.
3. To lead on the discharge of the Council’s functions in relation to health improvement.
4. To ensure the provision of services to adults in accordance with statutory

obligations, guidance and national policies.
5. To lead on the Councils policies for adult services, health and wellbeing.
6. To ensure a strategic approach to services for adults provided by the Council to 

promote well-being, prevent social exclusion and protect vulnerable adults, with a 
focus on Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults and the promotion of high standards of 
services for adults with social care needs across all agencies. 

7. With the Statutory Deputy City Mayor, to oversee the Council’s delivery of Welfare 
Rights and Debt Advice Services.

8. To lead on behalf of the council the development and delivery of the Service and 
Financial Plan for Adults’.

9. To lead on the Council’s duties delegated under a Section 75 to Salford Royal 
Foundation Trust ensuring that provision of services is in accordance with statutory 
obligations, guidance, and national policy.

10. To lead on behalf of the Council the contractual arrangements for the Integrated Care 
Organisation, jointly held with NHS Salford Clinical Commissioning Group. 

11. To lead on behalf of the Council and with partners the development and 
implementation of the Service and Financial Plan for Adults and Older People which 
includes key commissioning strategies for Mental Health, Learning Disability, Carers, 
Health and Housing.

12. To lead on behalf of the Council the development and implementation of the Age 
Friendly City. 

13. To co-Chair and take decisions on behalf of the Council at the Integrated Care and 
Joint Commissioning Committee (ICJC).

Page 24



Executive scheme of delegation June 2019

City Mayors Scheme of Executive Delegation June 2019 Page 17

Lead Member for Workforce and Industrial Relations - Areas of 
Responsibility
The City Mayor delegates authority within the responsibility areas outlined for
expenditure and saving decisions up to £350k.

1. To advise and assist the City Mayor in the exercise of his functions.
2. To lead on the Council’s Human Resources and Organisational Development

           Strategies
3. To lead on the Council’s Equality and Cohesion Strategies.
4. To have responsibility for performance management and business/forward
    planning.
5. To lead on the development and maintenance of an effective training and
    development plan for Councillors.
6. To lead on the development and maintenance of relations with the University
    of Salford.

 

Area Committees
In Salford the functions of Community Committees are discharged through Area 
Committees.

Details of the Area Committees can be found in the Council’s constitution.

The City Mayor delegates the following functions to Ward Members sitting as Members of 
Area Committees. 

1. Expenditure within or for the benefit of the relevant community to the limit from 
time to time decided,

The Ward Members shall have regard to the views of the relevant committee members 
drawn from within communities. 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1 - Open to the Public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF

THE MONITORING OFFICER

TO 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

ON 

27 JUNE 2019

TITLE: Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Review 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Standards Committee note the work underway to improve the handling of 
Complaints to the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman is the final stage for complaints 
about councils, all adult social care providers (including care homes and home care 
agencies) and some other organisations providing local public services. It 
investigates complaints from members of the public. In cases where there are 
integrated services, there can be some confusion for people about who is 
responsible for their services. 

Processes have now been redesigned to ensure that the Local Authority retains 
responsibility and oversight for the responses to the Ombudsman where it is 
accountable for the services delivered to members of the public. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

Council Complaints procedures. 

KEY DECISION: NO

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



2

DETAILS:

The stated objective of the Ombudsman is to remedy injustice and improve local 
public services. This includes issuing advice on good administrative practice in local 
government based on experience from prior investigations and also offering training 
in complaint handling to councils and care providers.

The Local Government Act 1974 established the then Local Government 
Ombudsman for England and for Wales. 

The Act defines their main statutory functions:
 to investigate complaints against councils and some other authorities
 to investigate complaints about adult social care providers from people who 

arrange or fund their own adult social care
 to provide advice and guidance on good administrative practice

The main activity under Part III of the 1974 Act is the investigation of complaints, 
which it states is limited to complaints from members of the public alleging they have 
suffered injustice as a result of maladministration and/or service failure.

Their jurisdiction under Part III covers all local authorities (excluding town and parish 
councils); police and crime bodies; school admission appeal panels and a range of 
other bodies providing local services. Under Part IIIA they investigate complaints 
from people who allege they have suffered injustice as a result of action by adult 
social care providers. The name changed to the Local Government and Social Care 
Ombudsman in 2017 to reflect the full scope of its remit. Wales is now covered by the 
Public Services Ombudsman for Wales.

The Regulatory Reform (Collaboration etc between Ombudsmen) Order 2007 
amended the 1974 Act and clarified the powers of the Local Government and Social 
Care Ombudsman, and the Parliamentary and Health Service Ombudsman, to work 
together. If a complaint covers both jurisdictions - typically social care and health 
issues - they can carry out joint investigations with a single point of contact.

Standards Committee receives reports from the Local Government and Social Care 
Ombudsman and how the Council has dealt with any such complaints. 

The Council has complaints procedures which have been agreed by the Standards 
Committee but as we have moved to increased collaboration with health and social 
care partners, with the creation of an Integrated Care Organisation and joint 
commissioning of children’s services with the CCG, we need to ensure that the 
Council’s accountability for these services is not lost. 

Work has started with colleagues in the CCG, the ICO and Children’s Commissioning 
to review these processes and make some changes to ensure that the organisations 
learn from any issues arising and that we continue to deliver excellent services to 
people who live in, work in and visit Salford. 

Page 28

https://www.lgo.org.uk/adult-social-care/complaints-about-health-and-social-care
https://www.lgo.org.uk/adult-social-care/complaints-about-health-and-social-care


3

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Salford City Council Constitution, Corporate Complaints 
procedures. 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: None arising from this 
report or its recommendations.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: If the Council fails to manage complaints it will be open to 
reputational and financial risk. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:

Contained within the body of the report 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Minimal

If the Council fails to deliver services to citizens and the Ombudsman finds that 
maladministration has occurred financial penalties can be imposed. 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: None arising from this report or its 
recommendation.

HR IMPLICATIONS: None arising from this report or its recommendation.
 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A

CONTACT OFFICER: MIRANDA CARRUTHERS-WATT      TEL NO: 0161 793 3620

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: ALL

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



DRAFT STANDARDS COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME (as at 19 June 2019)

Meeting 07 November 2019

Item Purpose Author Comments

Standing Item - Update on GM 
response to CPSL Best Practice 
Recommendations (including review 
of the LGA Model Code of Conduct)

To receive an update on progress and comment 
where appropriate

MO

Standing item – Work programme To review (and amend if necessary) items to be 
considered at future meetings

CAE

Standing item if required – Update 
on ethical governance

To update members on any national issues regarding 
ethical governance which may impact on the Council’s 
arrangements.

MO

26 March 2020

Item Purpose Author Comments

Annual Report of the Standards 
Committee

To receive a summary of the work carried out by the 
committee and the Monitoring Officer to ensure the 
authority has fulfilled its statutory duty in promoting 
and maintaining high standards of conduct.

MO

Code of Corporate Governance / 
Annual Governance Statement

To consider updates required in content specifically 
relating to ethical standards and behaviour.

JG

Standing Item - Update on GM 
response to CPSL Best Practice 
Recommendations (including review 
of the LGA Model Code of Conduct)

To receive an update on progress and comment 
where appropriate

MO

Standing item – Work programme To review (and amend if necessary) items to be 
considered at future meetings

CAE

Standing item if required – Update To update members on any national issues regarding MO

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 9



on ethical governance ethical governance which may impact on the Council’s 
arrangements.

UNSCHEDULED ITEMS

Item Purpose Author Comments

Register of Members’ Interests To review the operation and efficacy of the process 
for updating the Register of Members’ Interests

ML

Dispensations To review the operation and efficacy of the process 
for dealing with requests for dispensations

MO

P
age 32



DOCUMENTS WITHIN THE REMIT OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE

DOCUMENT LAST REVIEWED DATE DUE FOR REVIEW NOTES
Code of Conduct for Members Sept 2017 – Council Based on the model code but 

changes can be made if member 
behaviour/complaints evidence a 
need. 

Arrangements for dealing with allegations of 
breaches of Code, incl:

- Summary of arrangements
- Flow chart
- Assessment criteria checklist
- Guidance on investigation
- Intro to hearing procedures
- Pre-hearing process
- Hearing process
- Protocol for hearing panels
- Questions to be considered by 

hearing panels

Apr 2018 – Standards Cttee tbc

Policy on Management of Unreasonable 
Complainant Behaviour

Apr 2018 – Standards Cttee tbc

Member/Officer Relations protocol Sept 2017 – Council March 2019 - provisional Part of Constitution which is due for 
review imminently

Use of Council Resources – guidance for 
members – in Code of Conduct

Sept 2017 – Council March 2019 - provisional Part of Constitution which is due for 
review imminently

Social media – guidance for members 2014, forms part of annual 
member training on Code 
of Conduct

Currently under review in Comms 
team

Register of Members’ Interests Intranet updated as 
required

6mthly reminders sent to members

Register of Gifts & Hospitality Intranet updated as 
required

6mthly reminders sent to members

Gifts & hospitality – guidance for members Forms part of annual 
member training on Code 
of Conduct

P
age 33



DOCUMENTS OF INTEREST TO STANDARDS COMMITTEE - LEAD TAKEN BY OTHER COMMITTEES

DOCUMENT LEAD COMMITTEE LAST REVIEWED NEXT REVIEW DATE NOTES
Code of Corporate Governance Audit & Accounts May 2019 March - May 2020 Review initiated by officer Corporate 

Governance Group
Annual Governance Statement Audit & Accounts May 2019  March - May 2020 Review initiated by officer Corporate 

Governance Group
Whistleblowing Policy Audit & Accounts Oct 2016 Oct 2019

Code of Conduct for Employees Workforce Panel Sept 2017 March 2020 Prov Part of Constitution which will be 
reviewed following LGA 
consideration of Best Practice 
Recommendations from CSPL

Planning Protocol for Members and 
Officers

Planning Panel Sept 2017 March 2020 Prov Part of Constitution which will be 
reviewed following LGA 
consideration of Best Practice 
Recommendations from CSPL

P
age 34


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting Held on 19 March 2019
	4 Update on the Recruitment and Selection of Additional Independent Persons
	5 Review of the Constitution
	6 Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Review
	9 Work Programme

